
INSERT DATE 
REGULAR MEETING 
SAWDON ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
BOARD ROOM 
6:00 PM

Grand Ledge Public Schools

Board of Education



Grand Ledge Public Schools 
 

Regular Meeting 
of the 

Board of Education 
 

Please take notice that the Board of Education will hold a Regular Meeting on: 
 

Date:  Monday, August 28, 2023 
 

Place:  Sawdon Administration Building 
   Board Room 
   220 Lamson Street 

     Grand Ledge, MI  48837  
 

Once the meeting begins, it will be Live Streamed 

at: youtube.com/@GLPS21 (click on Live) 
 

Time:  6:00 p.m.  
 

Purpose:  General Business  
 

Phone:  (517) 925-5400 
 

Board minutes are located at the Board of Education office, 220 Lamson 
Street, Grand Ledge, MI  48837 
 
 
  

William A. Barnes, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools 
 
cc: Buildings 
 Board Members 
 Lansing State Journal 
 Melissa Mazzola, President, GLEA  
 Ashleigh Lore, Vice-President, GLEA 

Cindy Zerbe, President, MEA/NEA Unit I, Secretarial /Clerical 
 Denise Truman, President, MEA/NEA Unit III, Food Service 
 Allyson McCann, President, MEA/NEA Unit IV, TA/HC/Bus Assistants & Adv. Club 

Danis Peck, President, IUOE Local 547, A, B, C, E & H AFL-CIO, Bus Drivers 
Kelly LeSatz, President, IUOE Local 324, Custodians 

Date of Posting: August 23, 2023 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting.  Any person with a 
disability needing accommodations to attend a Board of Education meeting should contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at least three (3) days 
prior to the date of the meeting he/she plans to attend 



 

 
NOTE:  Individuals may address the Board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segments of the meeting.  Those 
representing a group, present at the meeting, may be allocated additional time.  If any person with a disability needs 
accommodations at the Board of Education meeting, please contact Kim Manning at 925-5401 at least three (3) days prior to the 
date of the meeting he/she plans to attend. 
 
 
 

Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education 
MEETING AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 28, 2023 - 6:00 pm 
 

 
I. Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance…………………….……..…Jarrod Smith, President 

 

II. Roll Call……………………………………………….…...Dr. Bill Barnes, Superintendent  
 

III. Approval of Agenda Items 
 

IV. Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
A. August 14, 2023 Work Session Minutes 
B. Teacher Hirings 

Jade Bowhall High School Math Tessa Marlatt Holbrook Kdg 
Kevin Ely High School Science Brian Mishler Hayes Resource 
Gillian Kindl Willow Ridge Resource Katie Sanchez Holbrook 4th Gr. 
Sarah Korff High School Math Samantha Wolfer-Dilno Virtual HS Math 
Connie Larson Hayes 5th Gr.    

 

V. Reports 
A. Capitol Connections  
B. Eaton RESA  
C. Grand Ledge Education Foundation 
D. Equity, Diversity & Inclusion 
E. Governance Committee 
F. Bond Update 
G. Superintendent 
H. Ongoing Discussions 
 

VI. Public Comment  
 

VII. New Business 
A. Approval of Staff Handbooks 

a. Central Office Supervisor 
b. Central Office Support Staff 
c. Dean of Students & Student Support Personnel 

B. Approval of 2023-2024 Curriculum Guides and Essential Learnings 
C. Approval of 2023-2024 Student Handbooks 
D. Approval of Comet Academy Cooperative Agreement 
E. Designation of Health Care Center Location at Grand Ledge High School 
 

VII. Comments from Staff and Board 
 

VIII. Future Topics 
• First Day of the 2023-2024 School Year for Students – August 30, 2023 – ½ Day 
• Board Bond Advisory - Monday, September 11, 2023 – 5:00 pm – Sawdon Room 107 
• Work Session – Monday, September 11, 2023 – 6:00 pm – Board Room 
 

IX. Adjournment 
 

 
 



"I pledge allegiance  

to the Flag  

of the United States of America,  

and to the republic  

for which it stands,  

one Nation under God,  

indivisible,  

with liberty and justice for all."

CALL TO ORDER & 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Jarrod Smith

4



ROLL CALL 

Superintendent Dr. William Barnes

5



PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                                  
August 28, 2023 Agenda Items, as presented. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA ITEMS

6



A.  August 14, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

B. Teacher Hirings 

PROPOSED MOTION: I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the                     
August 28, 2023 Consent Agenda Items, as presented.

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

7

Jade Bowhall High School Math Tessa Marlatt Holbrook Kdg

Kevin Ely High School Science Brian Mishler Hayes Resource

Gillian Kindl Willow Ridge Resource Katie Sanchez Holbrook 4th Gr.

Sarah Korff High School Math Samantha Wolfer-Dilno Virtual HS Math

Connie Larson Hayes 5th Gr.



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 08-14-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 1  
 
  

GRAND LEDGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 Board of Education 
 

 Committee of the Whole / Work Session – August 14, 2023 
 

MINUTES 
 
President Smith called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. He led those present in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Roll Call by Superintendent Bill Barnes indicated the presence of Board Members: Ashley 
Kuykendoll, Denise DuFort, Jon Shiflett, Nicole Shannon, Toni Glasscoe and Jarrod Smith.  Board 
Members Absent:  Ben Cwayna Central Office Administrators: Bill Barnes, Steve Gabriel, Julie 
Waterbury, Kelly Jones, Martez Warren, Mark Deschaine, and John Ellsworth. Others in 

Attendance:   Samuel DiMaggio, Melissa Mazzola, Jan M. Seeger, Tim Totten and Kim Manning 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
Secretary Shannon provided an overview for making public comment to the board. 
 
Sam DiMaggio addressed the board regarding Okemos & East Lansing – GL middle of the pack 
type of school.  Mtg with superintendent, asked him the question, felt disrespected.  Looks to me 
that GL has fallen to the middle of the pack.  Deal with the cards you are dealt.  Put together a 
report, where they came from, where they are, where we will be in 5 years.  Like to see a day GL 
has more Harvard, Yale graduates.   
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
A. Superintendent Evaluation Update – Business & Finance 

Superintendent Barnes provided his update with focus on Business & Finance, Section D of the 
Superintendent’s Evaluation Rubric.  He provided the established goal and the current 
initiatives established under each of the goals including Budget Development and 
Management, Budget Reports, Financial Controls, Facilities Management, and Resource 
Allocation. 

 
B. Strategic Plan Update 

Superintendent Barnes provided an update on the status of the Strategic Plan Smart Goals 
noting the smart goals were not approved and implemented until January of 2023.  He 
provided updated on each of the smart goals established for 2022-2023 and where the district 
was in respect to each of the goals established.  He reviewed the 2023-2024 goals have 
already been established and any goal that was not met in 2022-2023 will be carried over into 
2023-2024. He further shared feedback from end of year surveys and from the Parent School 
Improvement Team. 
 

ACTION ITEMS 
A. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE JULY 10, 2023 MEETING AND CLOSED SESSION 

Motion by Mrs. DuFort seconded by Ms. Shannon for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the July 20, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes and Closed Session 
Minutes, as presented.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 08-14-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 2  
 
B. 1ST READING OF NEOLA BOARD POLICIES – 5000 STUDENTS 

Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to Waive the first reading of NEOLA Board Policies 5000 – students.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Ms. Shannon led the group in reviewing the proposed changes suggested by the Governance 
Committee. 
 

C. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF CAPITAL FUNDS INVOICES 
Motion by Mr. Shiflett, seconded by Mrs. DuFort for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the payment of Capital Funds Invoices in the amount of 
$248,750.46, as presented.   
 
Mr. DuFort noted this represents invoices for allowable expenses at the High School Fine Arts 
renovation. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

D. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF SINKING FUND INVOICES 
Motion by Mrs. Kuykendoll, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Sinking Fund Invoices in the amount of 
$91,844.42, as presented.   
 
Mrs. DuFort noted this represents work related to the Pole Barn, carpet in new classrooms at 
Sawdon and roof scanning. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 

 
E. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF DELTA CENTER LIFE SAFETY INVOICES 

Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mrs. Kuykendoll for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the Payment of Delta Center Life Safety Invoices in the 
amount of $189,780.01, as presented.   
 
Mrs. DuFort noted these invoices represent work for the fire suppression system at Delta 
Center. 
 

F. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 1, SERIES 2 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 1, Series 2 Bond Invoices in the amount of 
$1,111,127.83, as presented.   

Mrs. DuFort noted this represents bond work at Delta Center and Wacousta.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

G. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 1, SERIES 3 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Ms. Shannon, seconded by Mr. Shiflett for the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board 
of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 1, Series 3 Bond Invoices in the amount of 
$7,183.34, as presented.   



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 08-14-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 3  
 

Mrs. DuFort noted this represents bond work at the High School.  

The motion carried unanimously. 

H. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 2, SERIES 1 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Mr. Shiflett, seconded by Mrs. Kuykendoll for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 2, Series 1 Bond Invoices in the 
amount of $30,414.14, as presented.   
 
Mrs. DuFort noted this represents work at the Beagle pool. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

I. APPROVAL OF THE PAYMENT OF PROPOSAL 2, SERIES 2 BOND INVOICES 
Motion by Mrs. Kuykendoll, seconded by Dr. Glasscoe for the Grand Ledge Public Schools 
Board of Education to approve the payment of Proposal 2, Series 2 Bond Invoices in the 
amount of $386,048.72, as presented.   
 
Mrs. DuFort noted this is for bond work on the Fine Arts addition. 
 
The motion carried unanimously.  
 

COMMENTS FROM STAFF AND BOARD 
Dr. Barnes addressed public comment made tonight noting that there are multiple sites that have 
all sorts of public school rankings and we simply can’t track what every site says.  He recommends 
seeking data from My School Data (link provided on our webpage) as this is the site that has our 
test scores.  In closing he thanked the board for their feedback on his presentations. 
 
Mrs. Kuykendoll commended the Wacousta ground breaking ceremony.  She went on to share 
concerns regarding holding open houses the night before the first day of school, getting access to 
teacher specific supply lists, teacher assignments and of course bus routes.  She asked everyone to 
be mindful that this is a stressful time for some people asking people to be kind and gracious.  She 
expressed she is grateful to our staff and administration and looks forward to another very successful 
school year.  
 
Mrs. DuFort expressed her appreciation to the Governance Committee members for their work in 
reviewing the NEOLA policies.  She shared she has heard a lot of great things regarding the 
upcoming school year and she is very excited that Delta Center is ready to go.  She thanked Bond 
Supervisor John Piper who has been instrumental in ensuring things stay on track.  In closing she 
expressed she feels we are starting stronger than we have in quite a while and she attributes that to 
our staff and our leadership. 
 
Ms. Shannon shared she just received a message that bus schedules will be out on August 19th.  She 
commented the Wacousta ground breaking was great, noted it appears we are in a good position 
with having enough bus drivers for all of our routes, shared her 4th graders request for a hydration 
station at Delta Center and in closing, wish Dr. Barnes a Happy Anniversary noting it has been one 
year since he took over as Superintendent and thanking him for his leadership. 
 
 



Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education 08-14-2023 
Committee of the Whole / Work Session   Page 4  
 
Dr. Glasscoe noted she attended the 50th reunion remarking it felt like family; the. Wacousta ground 
breaking, felt like family, and commenting this is what we are creating.  She remarked it is so 
refreshing.  She noted it is interesting where we are today; she feels included, she feels welcomed. 
She went on to note that she is happy we have data because the data shows quite a bump in math 
scores of the 2022 graduates.  She expressed the district is doing well, but there is always room for 
improvement.   
 
President. Smith remarked on the Wacousta ground breaking.  He went on to note that he hasn’t 
found a lot of students who say they are ready to come back but pointed out that many of our 
students are already back; there is high school soccer scrimmage tonight, the band students are 
back, so many students are already putting in the hours and already competing. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:56 p.m. 
 
Respectfully Submitted:    Attest: 
 
 
________________________________   _______________________________ 
Nicole Shannon, Secretary    Jarrod Smith, President 



















































A.  Capitol Connections Report 

B.  Eaton RESA Report 

C.  Grand Ledge Education Foundation Report 

D. Equity, Diversity & Inclusion Report 

E.  Governance Committee Report 

F.  Superintendent’s Report 

G. Ongoing Discussions 

REPORTS

36



Persons may address the board for up to three (3) minutes in the Public Comment segment of the meeting by          
providing your name and jurisdiction (City, Township / County) on one of the Public Comment forms provided at the 
sign in table and turning it in to the Superintendent’s Assistant. 

The meeting chair will use the Public Comment forms submitted to invite persons to come forward to make their  
public comment at the appropriate time. 

Board Meetings are constructed to conduct necessary business of the board, while allowing time for the public to   
express concerns and opinions.   

Out of respect for board members, students and staff, you will be interrupted if you: 
• Personally attack a board member or district employee on issues unrelated to their job performance. 
• Mention a student’s name when discussing behavior or other incidents. 
• Engage in discussion with other members of the audience. 

You will be reminded when you are approaching the end of your three-minute limit so you can conclude with your 
strongest points. 

The board will not respond to questions or comments during public comment but the Superintendent will do his best 
to answer questions at the end of the meeting.  If immediate answers are not available, arrangements will be made to    
provide you with the information requested. 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

37



A.  Approval of Staff Handbooks 

a. Central Office Supervisor 

b. Central Office Support Staff 

c. Dean of Students & Student Support Personnel 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the Staff 
Handbooks, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS A

38

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1tudvBN-xoMKTTZBXD8K8YzercnQkqk4N?usp=sharing


B.  Approval of 2023-2024 Curriculum / Course Guides & Essential Learnings 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the    
Curriculum / Course Guides and Essential Learnings, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS B

39

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1rqSEM9Yb2bxcGD_KT-ta2z9WOsPf_Nlb?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1M2qJ2L16PU9ELmcfJRKP7V53SCgjwmlI?usp=sharing


C.  Approval of 2023-2024 Student Handbooks 

A memo from Dr. Gabriel follows to provide you an overview of the revisions to the 2023-2024 
Student Handbooks.  You can tap the folder to view the individual Student Handbooks in their   
entirety.  Please do not be concerned with the Table of Contents and page numbering as this will 
be finalized following board approval of content. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
2023-2024 Student Handbooks, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS C

40

https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/drive/folders/1FxparERcB_M3laxIzsW2htJ6fmeCLiRt?usp=sharing


 

220 Lamson Street • Grand Ledge, MI  48837 • (517) 925-5403• gabriels@glcomets.net 

 

Dr. Steven Gabriel, Assistant Superintendent  
 
 

 
August 23, 2023 
 
To: Bill Barnes, Superintendent 
From: Steve Gabriel, Assistant Superintendent of Academic Services 
Re: 2023-2024 Student Handbook Revisions 
 
There are several changes proposed for the 2023-2022 Student Handbooks. Most are 
minor changes to wording and/or dates with the intent to provide greater clarity for 
students, parents, and staff and to align policy with current practice. For review, each 
handbook has been included in its entirety in the board packet with all changes 
highlighted.   
 
Please Note: there are some formatting issues which have resulted in page numbers 
being off.  These will be corrected once the BOE approves the changes and prior to 
publication.   
 
In addition, there are a few “bigger changes” changes which include the addition of 
new language and/or changes to policy.  Those changes are highlighted below: 
 
All Student Handbooks Highlights 

 
1. The addition of a new language RE: “intimidation” and “investigations” with 

language approved by the district’s attorneys.  Specifically: 
 

Intimidation: The use of slurs, taunts, or gestures directed at or toward 
members of a Protected class that, by their nature, are likely to substantially 
disrupt the school environment or interfere with others’ learning, including, 
without limitation, slurs based on disability status, national origin, race, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, or gender identity. 

• In/Out of School Suspension 1–10 Days 

• Possible Loss of Privileges 

• Possible Restorative Justice Referral 

• Student Supports 

 



 

 

The Student Code of Conduct outlines behaviors and accompanying 
consequences for students who engage in those behaviors. It is understood, 
however, that many of these behaviors have a direct impact on other students in 
the building. These include, but are not limited to, assaults, harassment, 
derogatory language, and intimidation. When students are impacted by these 
behaviors, they may request supports from a school counselor or other staff 
members who can help assist them in dealing with the impact of the incident. 
Administrators will encourage students to access these supports and provide 
opportunities as needed.  

AND 
 

Investigations: Grand Ledge Public Schools values the relationship and 
partnership we have with our families and our students. With that in mind, we 
also have an obligation to keep students safe, create a space in which all 
students are treated fairly, and ensure that the actions of other students do not 
impede their ability to learn. Therefore, in an effort to ensure timely and 
thorough investigations of incidents in the school, students may be questioned 
by school officials at any time, without parent notice or consent, consistent with 
the district’s obligation to maintain a safe and orderly learning 
environment. School officials will endeavor to communicate with parents in a 
timely manner; however, specific details of an investigation may not be able to 
be shared to protect the privacy of all students involved. 

 
1. School Closing (Replaces old language) 

 
Grand Ledge Public Schools uses the SchoolMessenger system to notify families in the event 
of school closings, early dismissals, and other important school-related information. It is 
vital for families to keep contact information up to date with their school buildings. Grand 
Ledge Public Schools also places a District Alert on our website at www.glcomets.net for 
school closings. SchoolMessenger calls announcing school closings are made at 
approximately 5:30 a.m. to ensure bus riders receive the information in a timely manner. 
Families are encouraged to make sure their student(s) knows what to do in the event of an 
early dismissal if adults will not be home. 

 
While in school, if a tornado watch is issued, schools will keep students in regular session. If 
a tornado has been sighted in the area, all students will take cover in the building. School 
administrators and teachers will place children in a safe location as advised by safety 
officials. Please do not call the school.  

 
 
High School Student Handbook Highlights 
 

1. Awards (Delete Subsection titled “Senior Scholars”) New language for Entire 
Awards Section 

 
   



 

 

Grand Ledge High School uses a formula to select students for Top Scholar 

recognition. Students who maintain an honor graduate status of a 3.9 or higher 

GPA (Summa Cum Laude) and have completed at least 50% of their credits 

through Grand Ledge High School are eligible for the Top 25 Senior Scholars 

Award. At the end of the second trimester of their senior year, students with 

honor graduate status will have their GPA and SAT scores calculated into the Top 

25 list. This formula uses a point system that consists of the student’s Grade 

Point Average multiplied by a factor of 1000 (GPAx1000) and SAT score. 

(Example: GPA 4.0 x 1000 = 4000 points + SAT score of 1600 points = a total of 

5600 points OR GPA 4.137 x 1000 = 4137 + SAT score of 1280 = a total of 5417 

points). These students will be individually honored at the graduation ceremony. 

Top Scholar status does not adjust class rank, which is calculated by GPA only.  

 

The following honors will be recognized at graduation: 

o Top Scholars - SAT and GPA Calculation (25 Students) 

o Valedictorian - Highest GPA (1 Student) 

o Salutatorian - Second-Highest GPA (1 Student) 

o Summa Cum Laude - GPA 3.9 and up 

o Magna Cum Laude - GPA 3.7 - 3.89 

o Cum Laude - GPA 3.5 - 3.69 

o Honor Roll - GPA - 3.0 - 3.49 

 

Speakers at graduation will be chosen from Magna Cum Laude and above (3.7 or 

above). The senior students with a 3.7 or higher GPA will be given the 

opportunity to apply to be a speaker at graduation. Based on the results of the 

student nominations, a group of teachers will interview the top choices and 

select at least a minimum of 2 student speakers. It is already understood that by 

tradition, the class president will also speak. 

  

2. Graduation Requirements - Other Option - Grand Ledge Comet 
Academy 
Students entering their senior year, who are determined by the counseling 

and/or administration team to be off-course for graduation or in need of an 

alternate setting may be recommended to complete graduation requirements 

through the Grand Ledge Comet Academy.  

 

Grand Ledge High School and Relevant Academy have partnered to create Comet 

Academy. We are committed to providing alternative programming for our 

students and to building positive learning communities in a supportive, 

productive environment. Comet Academy will be operated by Relevant Academy 

staff and physically located on the third floor of the district’s Sawdon 

Administration building and will offer a combination of virtual and in-person 

instruction. Students enrolled in Comet Academy are considered Grand Ledge 

High School (GLHS) students:  



 

 

• Once enrolled, students will complete their remaining graduation 
requirements through Comet Academy.  

• Credits completed in Comet Academy will count towards earning a GLHS 
Diploma.  

• Comet Academy students in good standing will be eligible to participate in all 
extracurricular activities offered at GLHS including interscholastic athletics. 

 
3. Cell Phone Policy 

Cell phones or other electronic communication devices are not allowed to be 
used during class/instructional time unless expressly permitted by a staff 
member for educational purposes. Cell phone use includes all functions, such as 
cameras, text and calling functions, games, social media, video streaming, apps, 
etc. Cell phones are not to be used as replacements for in-class schoolwork 
requiring Chromebooks. Instructional time is considered across the building from 
when the bell rings to start the instructional hour/period until the bell rings to 
complete the hour/period. So, students are unable to use cell phones in the 
hallways while class is in session.  
Non-class or non-instructional times include before and after school, lunches, 
passing times, and after-hours school events. Students must adhere to 
responsible cell phone usage at all school times to ensure that cell phones are 
not used for harassment, recording assaults, intimidation, instigation, cheating, 
or other inappropriate behavior.  

 
Cell phone use is strictly prohibited in restrooms, locker rooms, or other changing 
areas at all times. Unauthorized recording or picture-taking is prohibited at all 
times. 

 
Note: Grand Ledge High School is not responsible for any lost, 
damaged, or stolen cell phones and/or cell phone accessories. Grand 
Ledge High School will not dedicate time or resources to assist in lost 
or stolen devices. 

 
*Students may utilize cell phones or other devices for medical monitoring 
purposes or other expressly written accommodations in 504s and IEPs. Cell 
phones can only be utilized for the purpose expressly identified for student 
success or accommodation.  

 
 

Middle School Handbook Highlights 
 
1.  Cell Phone Policy  

Students are allowed to bring their cell phones to school.  Once students enter the 
school building, students are expected to keep their cell phones off and out-of-sight 
the duration of the school day.  Cell phones are not to be used in the hallways, 
classrooms, restrooms, or locker rooms.  Students may access their cell phones at 



 

 

the end of the school day once they exit the building.  Students that violate the cell 
phone policy will be expected to turn their cell phone in at the main office for the 
day.  Parents that need to get ahold of their student during the school are expected 
to call the main office. 

 
After the Board approves these revisions, we will replace the 2022-2023 versions 
currently on the website with the 2023-2024 Student Handbooks. 
 
As always, if you have any questions, do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
 
 
 



D.  Approval of Comet Academy Cooperative Agreement 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education approve the 
Comet Academy Cooperative Agreement, as presented, pending any further negotiations with         
Relevant Academy.

NEW BUSINESS D

46



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
Between Relevant Academy and Grand Ledge Public Schools

This cooperative agreement is made by and between Relevant Academy (“Relevant”), a
Michigan public school academy whose address is 220 Lamson St (3rd Floor), Grand Ledge, MI
48837, and Grand Ledge Public Schools (“Grand Ledge”), a Michigan general powers school
district whose address is 220 Lamson Street, Grand Ledge, Michigan 48837.

WHEREAS:

● Revised School Code Section 11a, MCL 380.11a, authorizes a general powers school
district to enter into agreements, contracts, or cooperative arrangements with other
public entities as part of performing the functions of the school district; and

● Revised School Code Section 504a(d) authorizes a public school academy to enter into
agreements as necessary to perform its functions; and

● Revised School Code Section 1282, MCL 380.1282, enables school districts to establish
and carry on the grades, schools, and departments they consider necessary or desirable
for the maintenance and improvement of their schools and determine the courses of
study to be pursued; and

● State School Aid Act Section 3, MCL 388.1603(7), and Pupil Accounting Manual Section
5-B further authorize schools to enter into “cooperative education programs,” which are
written voluntary agreements to provide certain educational programs for students in
certain groups of schools; and

● State School Aid Act Section 21f, MCL 388.1621f, in conjunction with Pupil Accounting
Manual Section 5-O-D, authorizes school districts to provide “virtual courses,” which are
courses of study that are capable of generating a credit or a grade and are provided in
an interactive learning environment where the majority of the curriculum is delivered
using the internet and in which pupils may be separated from their instructor or teacher
of record by time or location, or both; and

● Relevant Academy provides virtual programming for students in grades 9-12 (the
“Program”), and Grand Ledge Public Schools is desirous of offering the opportunity of
enrollment in the Program to eligible students, who are those students Grand Ledge has
determined meet the requirements for enrollment in the Program (“Eligible Students”).

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree to the terms and conditions set forth herein.

1. Term: This agreement is effective from August 21, 2023 through June 30, 2024. The
Parties must approve this Agreement on an annual basis pursuant to Pupil Accounting
Manual Section 5-B.

2. Termination. Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without
cause, by providing written notice to the other Party. Termination shall become effective
at the end of the current contract year (i.e., June 30) and shall not relieve the terminating
Party from its obligations under the Agreement until the effective date of termination.



3. Payment: Grand Ledge will reimburse Relevant for all services at the agreed upon rate
of 70% of the per pupil allocation for regular education students and 65% of the per pupil
allocation for students with active IEPs. This amount will be prorated based on the
number of classes in which the student is enrolled, and the amount of time enrolled.

● 4 Classes = 70% of the per pupil allocation for a full year enrollment
● 3 Classes = 52.5% of the per pupil allocation for a full year enrollment
● 2 Classes = 35% of the per pupil allocation for a full year enrollment
● 1 Class = 17% of the per pupil allocation for a full year enrollment
● Partial year enrollments will be prorated as a percentage of days attended

out of 181 total school days.

4. Resident District Obligations. Grand Ledge will fulfill all obligations of a primary district
under Section 21f of the State School Aid Act and Section 5-O-D of the Pupil Accounting
Manual, including but not limited to the following:
a. Claim the per pupil foundation allowance equal to 1.0 FTE.

i. Foundation amount will be based on the State Aid Report.
b. Assign a “mentor” to each pupil enrolled in a virtual course and supply Relevant
with the mentor’s contact information before each academic term. Each “mentor” shall
be a professional employee of Grand Ledge who satisfies the requirements for “mentors”
established in Section 21f of the State School Aid Act, MCL 388.1621f, and Section
5-O-D of the Michigan Pupil Accounting Manual. Mentors will be granted access to
Virtual Program courses in which the mentor’s student is participating.
c. Provide compatible devices and internet access thereon, along with “technology
protection measures” (i.e., a technology that filters internet access) on its devices to
protect minors from visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography, or harmful to
minors.
d. Grant appropriate academic credit for successful course completion and count credit
toward graduation and subject area requirements.
e. Maintain all responsibility for administration of any state-mandated testing or
assessments, and for all required reporting of data derived from testing, assessments,
or otherwise.
f. Grand Ledge is responsible for the provision of special education and related
services, including the evaluation of students for such services, the development of
Individualized Education Programs, the development of 504 Plans, the implementation
of such plans (with the exception of 504 plans or IEPs that require the implementation of
accommodations to the teaching/learning environment), providing a free appropriate
public education, and all costs associated with providing special education and related
services. When an IEP or 504 plan requires accommodations to the teaching/learning
environment, Relevant will ensure that these accommodations are implemented in the
classroom setting when applicable. Relevant will collect necessary data to demonstrate
implementation of IEPs and 504 Plans and provide that data to Grand Ledge. Relevant
will promptly notify Grand Ledge if Relevant has reason to suspect that an Eligible
Student participating in the Program may be a student with a disability.



g. If the pupil is enrolled in more than two (2) virtual courses in an academic term,
semester, or trimester, Grand Ledge will first determine that enrollment is in the best
interest of the pupil and ensure the pupil agrees with Grand Ledge’s recommendation.

h. Grand Ledge is responsible for all arrangements and costs associated with due
process hearings.
i. Grand Ledge is responsible for student discipline.
i. Grand Ledge is responsible for providing transportation.
j. Grand Ledge will present the course catalog to its Board of Education for approval.

5. Educating District Obligations. Relevant will:
a. Not claim the per pupil foundation allowance for Grand Ledge students enrolled

in the Program pursuant to this Agreement.
b. Bill Grand Ledge for any agreed upon services at the agreed upon rates outlined

above.
c. Be responsible for the personnel necessary for the delivery of the agreed upon

programs and services.
d. Assist, as requested by Grand Ledge, with implementing accommodations for

students with disabilities.
e. Assign grades for each student enrolled in each class so that Grand Ledge may

award credit earned towards graduation per the handbook.
f. Provide Grand Ledge with the course catalog for Board of Education approval.
g. Offer courses from the approved course catalog through the Program, which

shall be comprised of live instruction, asynchronous instruction, and on-demand
work, and which shall be operated in compliance with Section 21f of the State
School Aid Act, Section 5-O-D of the Pupil Accounting Manual, and all other
applicable provisions of state law or the Pupil Accounting Manual.

h. Except as otherwise stated in this Agreement, Relevant shall provide all learning
materials for virtual courses.

i. Assign each pupil a teacher of record and provide Grand Ledge with the
personnel identification code from the Center for Educational Performance and
Information (“CEPI”) for the teacher of record. Each “teacher of record” shall be
employed directly by Relevant and shall:
i. Hold a valid Michigan teaching certificate, substitute permit, authorization,

or approval issued by the Michigan Department of Education (“MDE”).
ii. If applicable, be endorsed in the subject area and grade of the virtual

course.
iii. Be responsible for providing instruction, determining instructional methods

for each pupil, diagnosing learning needs, assessing pupil learning,
prescribing intervention strategies and modifying lessons, reporting
outcomes, and evaluating the effects of instruction and support strategies.

iv. Have a personnel identification code provided by CEPI.
j. Ensure that the virtual course is academic in nature and approved by Relevant’s

Board.



k. Assign grades and other marks to Eligible Students in the Program. For a course
required by Michigan law for graduation, a teacher of record shall not award
credit unless the student has demonstrated the level of content proficiency
required by law.

l. If required by law, not later than October 1 each fiscal year, provide the Michigan
Virtual University with an aggregated count of enrollment for each virtual course
the provider delivered during the preceding school year and the number of
enrollments in which the pupil earned 60% or more of the total course points for
each virtual course.

m. Assist Grand Ledge with pupil accounting documentation for participating
students, as necessary.

6. Student Education Records. Relevant will receive Eligible Students’ personal data,
including “personally identifiable information” or “education records”, as defined by the Family
Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), 20 USC 1232g, 34 CFR Part 99, as an incident
of the Program. Grand Ledge shall ensure that its annual FERPA notices (e.g., its opt-out form
for directory information disclosures, per Revised School Code Section 1136, MCL 380.1136)
are consistent with this provision. In addition, Relevant administrators and teachers shall be
deemed “school officials determined to have a legitimate educational interest” under 34 CFR
99.31(a)(1), within Grand Ledge’s policies and procedures. In accordance with this “school
official” exception, Program administrators and teachers: (1) are performing an institutional
function or service that Grand Ledge has outsourced to it and which would otherwise be
performed by Grand Ledge personnel; (2) have a legitimate educational interest in the
FERPA-protected information; (3) are under the direct control of Grand Ledge with respect to
the use and maintenance of education records; and (4) will comply with the applicable
regulations concerning re-disclosure of personally identifiable information.

7. Liability. Each Party shall have and retain liability to third parties for injuries sustained
or damages incurred on its own premises and through the actions of its own employees or
agents, any of its obligations under this Agreement, or under law, except such liability that may
arise by reason of the actions or omissions of the other Party, its agents, or employees. Nothing
herein shall be construed as a waiver of governmental immunity.

8. Financial Compliance. The Program shall be operated in accordance with the Uniform
Budgeting and Accounting Act, MCL 141.421 et seq.; the State School Aid Act, MCL 388.1601
et seq.; and all other laws pertaining to the financial operation of such a program.

9. Dispute Resolution. The Parties will meet in good faith to resolve any disputes related to
this Agreement. If a meeting does not resolve the dispute to both Parties’ satisfaction, the
Parties will participate in facilitated mediation with a mutually agreed-upon mediator. If the
Parties cannot agree on a mediator, or if mediation does not resolve the dispute to both Parties’
satisfaction, the dispute may be submitted to binding arbitration, the decision from which shall
be the sole and exclusive remedy for disputes between the Parties under this Agreement. Such
arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration



Association. The arbitrator’s fee shall be shared equally between the Parties. All Parties may
have legal representation, but shall be individually responsible for their respective legal
expenses. A judgment on the arbitrator’s award may be entered in any court of competent
jurisdiction. The Parties expressly agree that this arbitration agreement precludes them from
filing claims against the other in court and effectively waives any right to a jury trial.

10. Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall not be assigned, or subcontracted,
without the written consent of the other Party, which may be reasonably withheld. If consent has
been provided in advance of any assignment or subcontract, this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and shall be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Parties.

11. No Joint Employment. The terms of this Agreement will not be construed in any manner
whatsoever so as to create a joint employer relationship between Relevant and Grand Ledge.
Relevant employees will not be considered employees of Grand Ledge at any time, or vice
versa, because of this Agreement.

12. Bargaining. This Agreement is an intergovernmental agreement to consolidate or
otherwise collaborate regarding one or more functions or services through the use of technology
to deliver educational programs and services, as permitted by Public Employment Relations Act
Section 15, MCL 423.215(11) and MCL 423.215(3)(h).

13. Nondiscrimination. The Parties agree not to discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, or privileges of
employment, or a matter directly or indirectly related to employment, because of race, color,
religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status. The Parties further agree not
to discriminate against any individual, including any Eligible Student, because of race, color,
religion, national origin, age, sex, height, weight, or marital status. Breach of this paragraph may
be regarded as a material breach of contract.

14. Waiver. Failure by either Party, at any time, to require performance by the other Party, or to
claim a breach of any provision of this Agreement, will not be construed as a waiver of any
subsequent breach, will not affect the validity and operation of this Agreement, and will not
prejudice either Party with regard to subsequent action to enforce the terms of this Agreement.

15. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement should be invalid, illegal or unenforceable
in any respect, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this
Agreement will not be affected, impaired, or prejudiced thereby, unless the provision(s) removed
materially impact the basic intent of this Agreement.

16. Governing Law. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereunder
will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan.



17. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, including
facsimile and electronic signatures, each of which will be deemed to be an original, but all of
which constitute one and the same agreement.

18. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding between the parties
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes all previous oral or written
agreements and understandings on the subject matter between the parties. No provision of this
Agreement may be modified except in writing executed by both Parties.

Lauren Blakley, Director Dr. William Barnes, Superintendent
Relevant Academy Grand Ledge Public Schools

Date Date



E.  Designation of Health Care Center Location at Grand Ledge High School 

PROPOSED MOTION:  I move the Grand Ledge Public Schools Board of Education Designate Room 
118 for the Health Care Center at Grand Ledge High School, as presented.

NEW BUSINESS E

53



COMMENTS FROM STAFF & BOARD

54



• First Day of the 2023-2024 School Year for Students - August 30, 2023 - 1/2 Day 

• Board Bond Advisory - Monday, September 11, 2023 - 5:00 p.m. - Sawdon Room 107 

• Work Session - Monday, September 11, 2023 - 6:00 p.m. - Board Room  

FUTURE TOPICS

55



   Time:  _________________________

ADJOURNMENT

56


